Public Document Pack

Individual Decision

The attached report(s) will be taken as
Individual Portfolio Member Decision(s) on:

Wednesday, 24th August, 2011

Portfolio

Ref: Title Member(s) Page No.
ID2237 Burghfield Village Design Councillor Alan Law 1-32
Statement

¥ WestBerkshire

N C | L




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 1.

Individual Executive Member Decision

Title of Report:

Report to be considered
by:

Date on which Decision
is to be taken:

Forward Plan Ref:

Burghfield Parish Design Statement

Individual Executive Member Decision

August 2011

ID2237

Purpose of Report:

Recommended Action:

Reason for decision to be
taken:
Other options considered:

Key background
documentation:

To report on the formal public consultation undertaken
on the Draft Burghfield Parish Design Statement and
to consider its adoption as part of the community
planning process

To endorse and adopt the Burghfield Parish Design
Statement as outlined in Appendix C

Formal adoption of the Parish Design Statement; the
Statement having gone through the agreed processes with
West Berkshire Council.

None

Planning Policy Statement 12 Local Spatial Planning
(PPS12)

Portfolio Member Details

Name & Telephone No.:

Councillor Alan Law - Tel (01491) 873614

E-mail Address:

alaw@westberks.gov.uk

Contact Officer Details

Name: Sarah McCullough
Job Title: Senior Planning Officer
Tel. No.: 01635 519664

E-mail Address:

smccullough@westberks.gov.uk

West Berkshire Council

Individual Decision 24 August 2011
Page 1



Implications

Policy:

Financial:
Personnel:
Legal/Procurement:

Environmental:

Property:
Risk Management:

Equalities Impact
Assessment:

Consultation Responses

Design Statements prepared as part of the community
planning process in West Berkshire can influence the
operation of the statutory planning system

There are no direct financial implications at this stage
There are no direct personnel implications at this stage
There are no direct legal implications at this stage

Design Statements can highlight some local environmental
issues and as such can play a useful role in conserving and
enhancing the environment at this level.

There are no specific Property implications at this stage

There are no direct risk management issues arising from the
Design Statement.

The consultation carried out in support of the Design
Statement helps ensure that all people have an opportunity
to have their views and concerns heard.

Members:
Leader of Council:

Overview & Scrutiny
Management
Commission Chairman:

Ward Members:

Opposition

Spokesperson:
Local Stakeholders:

Officers Consulted:

Trade Union:

Graham Jones
Brian Bedwell

Carol Jackson-Doerge; Royce Longton

Tony Vickers

Previously consulted during the preparation of the Design
Statement

Previously consulted during the preparation of the Design
Statement

N/A

Is this item subject to call-in. Yes: @ No: D

If not subject to call-in please put a cross in the appropriate box:

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval

Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position

Considered or reviewed by O&SMC or associated Task Groups within preceding

six months
Item is Urgent Key Decision

HN N

West Berkshire Council

Individual Decision 24 August 2011
Page 2




Supporting Information

1. Background

1.1 This Parish Design Statement for Burghfield is a document describing the qualities
and characteristics that local people value in their village and its surroundings. It
sets out clear and simple guidance for the design of all development in the parish.
It cannot be used to stop new development, but it can be used to influence
developers and the local planning authority, and to ensure that new buildings
respect and reflect local character.

1.2 Such Design Statements are intended to influence the operation of the statutory
planning system and this has worked well in West Berkshire for the past few years.
The Council has actively encouraged the production of design statements and since
2001 has adopted the following:

e Basildon, Chieveley, Bucklebury, Cold Ash and Ashmore Green, Speen,
Beenham, Hermitage and Inkpen as supplementary planning guidance
(SPG) under the old planning system (prior to September 2004)

e Newbury, Pangbourne, Compton, Stratfield Mortimer and Brimpton as a
‘material consideration’ in planning decisions under the new planning system
(between September 2004 and June 2008)

e Streatley and Hamstead Marshall in 2009, and Standford Dingley in 2010 as
part of the community planning process.

1.3  Since June 2008 Design Statements now achieve recognition through the
community planning process rather than the statutory planning process as
previously. This is because the Government published revised planning guidance
in Planning Policy Statement 12 Local Spatial Planning (PPS12). This removed the
ability the Council had to specifically adopt new Design Statements as a ‘material
consideration’ in planning decisions. It does not mean that they are seen as any
less important however. The Government reaffirms this by stating that ‘Councils
should pay close attention to the contents of non statutory parish and community
plans as part of their community involvement in the production of the Local
Development Framework (LDF)’.

1.4  To ensure that design statements produced in this way are still accorded weight in
the planning process, for example, by planning inspectors at appeals, it remains
particularly important to show that they:

e have been produced in consultation with the local community and stakeholders,
including statutory consultees;

e conform with relevant development plan policies; and

e have been adopted by the Council.

1.5 The following procedures are therefore being adopted by community groups in
West Berkshire when preparing design statements:

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 24 August 2011
Page 3



1.6

2.2

2.3

2.4

Stage 1
Production of draft design statement by the design statement group with the
involvement of a wide cross-section of the local community;

Stage 2
Officer agreement to final version of draft design statement;

Stage 3

Four week ‘formal’ consultation period where the design statement group consults
with the local community and West Berkshire Council consult with relevant
stakeholders & statutory consultees;

Stage 4
Amendments to the design statement made as appropriate;

Stage 5
Design statement group presents final design statement to the Council for adoption
as an Individual Executive Member decision.

The production of the Burghfield Parish Design Statement has been carried out in
accordance with this procedure.

Burghfield Parish Design Statement

The need for the preparation of a design statement for Burghfield was originally
highlighted within the Burghfield Parish Plan. A working group was subsequently
formed from the local community and the design statement drawn up with advice
from Council officers.

Formal consultation on the draft design statement was undertaken by West
Berkshire Council for four weeks from 19th November to 17th December 2010.
Officers consulted directly with nearly 40 statutory agencies, national interest
groups, adjacent parish councils, local interest groups and local developers (or their
agents). In addition, the draft document was made available on the Council's web
site.

There were 5 formal responses to the Draft document and these are attached as
Appendix B. In general these were both positive and constructive. The community
has since revised the Design Statement in response to some, but not all, of these
comments. The final Design Statement is attached as Appendix C. Officers hope
that those responses not incorporated into the final Design Statement will still be
considered to be of value by the Parish Council in the future.

If the document is endorsed and adopted by the Council, the working group will
prepare the document for publication, including images, maps (with
acknowledgments) and illustrations as appropriate. They will then publish the
document and make an electronic copy available for use by West Berkshire
Council.

Appendices

Appendix A — Equality Impact Assessment — Stage One
Appendix B - Formal responses to the Draft Burghfield Parish Design Statement
Appendix C — Burghfield Parish Design Statement

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 24 August 2011

Page 4



APPENDIX A

Equality Impact Assessment — Stage One

Name of item being assessed: Burghfield Parish Design Statement

Version and release date of

item (if applicable): Issue 1 — August 2011

Owner of item being assessed: Burghfield Parish Council / West Berkshire

Council
Name of assessor: Sarah McCullough
Date of assessment: 13 July 2011
1. What are the main aims of the item?

The purpose of the decision is to endorse and adopt the Burghfield Parish Design
Statement.

This Design Statement describes the qualities and characteristics that local people value
in their village and its surroundings.

It sets out clear and simple guidance for the design of all development in the parish.

2, Note which groups may be affected by the item, consider how they may be
affected and what sources of information have been used to determine
this. (Please demonstrate consideration of all strands — Age, Disability, Gender,
Race, Religion or Belief and Sexual Orientation.)

2;3:;?“ What might be the effect? Information to support this.
Age No impact N/A

Disability No impact N/A

Gender No impact N/A

Race No impact N/A

gslliig]icon or No impact N/A

Se_xual . No impact N/A

Orientation

Further comments relating to the item:

Four week consultation was conducted on this item, seeking views of nearly 40
statutory agencies, national interest groups, adjacent parish councils, local interest
groups and local developers (or their agents). The document was also made available
on the Council’s website.

3. Result (please tick by double-clicking on relevant box and click on ‘checked’) |

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 24 August 2011
Page 5



High Relevance - This needs to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact Assessment

Medium Relevance - This needs to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact
Assessment

Low Relevance - This needs to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact Assessment

No Relevance - This does not need to undergo a Stage 2 Equality Impact
Assessment

> O |

For items requiring a Stage 2 equality impact assessment, begin the planning of this
now, referring to the equality impact assessment guidance and Stage 2 template.

4, Identify next steps as appropriate:
Stage Two required

Owner of Stage Two assessment:
Timescale for Stage Two assessment:
Stage Two not required:

Name: Sarah McCullough Date: 13/07/2011

West Berkshire Council Individual Decision 24 August 2011
Page 6



‘sde\ s|esodoid

ue|d [ed07] ayj Ulypim paulsp
ale sallepunod jusws|)}es
‘saolpuaddy ay) uiyim

1IN0 189S ale Juswaas Yyoea
Jo sdew pajieep alow ‘dew
8y} Jo 8zIs 8y} 0} pJebal YU

‘asuodsal ul
apew usaq aAey sabueyds Jouiw
pue pajou ale SJUSWWO0 8say |

:UolBJepISuod
1o} Buimoylo} ayy pajsy| ‘siesodoud 1A09) (2907 1§ "OH "UIlN Buimoljo} ‘Jouisia 8y} £961 Ul
*1a]oBIBYD pUB ]X3JU0D 0] ppe A8y ¢8Wos ale alay) Ajains - sBulp|ing palsiT JO 1SI| Ou S 818y -

‘dew
8y} Uo paylew aq pjnoys Auy ¢ Ssallepunog Juswaies aAey Jou seale pjaybing ¢ ayy oq -

‘Ajisea dew 0}
1X81 yojew ued ajdoad jey} os 1nop|o} $y a|gnop e Ajqissod ‘papasu si eale ay) Jo dew Jable| vy -

"Jua||e0Xa aJe AJslaAlpolg ‘edeospueT] Uo suoljoss - abelanod poob saAlb juswnoop ay |

3440

‘Juswale)s ubisaq
ay) 0} pasodo.ud ale sabueyo ou
1Ng pajou ale SjUBWWOoD 8say |

‘Slomas
ay} Jo a1nol ay} Jano pajueld aq Jou pjnoys sgniys pue saal) Aiojoejsiies ajelado 0] SIomas
olignd asayj Joy} Japlo U] "waisAs abeiamas o1ignd ay) 0} ebewep SNoLIBS asned ued sqniys

pue saaJ} Jo Bunue|d ajeulwlIoSIpul 8y} ‘leAnamoH ‘way} jo Bunueld sy sabeinoous pue sasl)
JO S}IJaUa(Q [BJUBWILOIIAUS B} sasiubooal Jaiep) sewey | ‘Absjens Bunueld aaly ay) Buipiebay
‘6861

10V J8JBAA BU1 JO G8| UOI}08S YIIM 8ouUeplodoe Ul JuswdojaAsp 8)epowwodde 0} se 0S jsanbal
s JadojaAap e Je paAOW 8q 0} sulew Jajem Jo s1amas alignd Joj aqissod aq Aew )| ‘uonsenb

ul snjeledde 1o/pue Jamas alignd ayj J0830.4d 0} Japlo Ul JUswaalby ue Aq pajejnbal aq o)

paau |m J1 Jalep) sawey | Aq paalbe siJamas dljgnd e 0} 8s0|9 10 JaAo Bulpjing J| Jamas dlignd
B 0} 950|210 Jano Bulpjing Buiajoaul sjesodoud Buipiebal pajnsuod aq os|e jsnul Jsjep) Sauwey |
"sSwie)sAs abeiomes

ollgnd pue Jayem sulew 21jgnd ay) 0} Bunejal sisjew [|e uo pajNsuod aq pinoYs Jajep) sewey |
:Buimol|o} 8y} 0] 8oUBIBBI B EW PINOYS SIY|

‘Juswiale)s ubisa oy} Ul SanliiN PUB aJnjonJiselyu], Uo UOI0as e 8q pPinoys aJay} jey} Japisuod
M UO pajusWwWod dAeYy am sjuswalels ubisaq ysued pue abejjiA aaiysyiag 1Sop) 19U10 YUM sy
‘'swie)sAs abeiamas pue Jajem 2lignd sy} 1oy o|qisuodsal sI yons se pue

101ISIq 241ysyiag 1SoAN U} JO) Jayeuapun abelamas pue Jajem Aiojnjels ay} Sl JaJep) Sawey |

Jajepn sewey |

uonoy

uoljejuasaiday

29)|Nsuo)n

9 XIdN3ddV

sasuodsay uonejnsuosn

juawajels ubisaq ysied pjeyybing

Page 7



"SHUIT [NJOsN dy} pue paysabbns
se auljapIinb mau e ‘sjusawwod
Aysianipolg ay) buipiebal
pappe uaaq aAey s|ie}ad

"palou aJe SjusaWWod asay |

‘pabeinoous (buiAejebpay ‘o'1) Juswabeuew JO SPoOY}BW |euoljiped)
pue paule}al 8q p|noOYs yslied ay} ulyyim smosabpay Bunsix3 "sainjes) uoneAlasuod
alnjeu pue adeospue| a|genjeA jussaidal Aoy} pue sieak jJo spalpuny Joj aoeid ul
uaaq aney Auepy -adeospue| ysijbug ay jo ped jeibajul ue aie smolobpaH :smotabpaq o
‘(Abajens
2100 uoIssiwgng pasodold s,a41ysyiag 1SN UIYlIM papnjoul usaq aAeYy adiysyiag
1S9 Ulyum syyOg) ueld anoA ul )l apnjoul 0} noA abelnosus pjnom pue syyQg asauy)
Buiuipno dew e pasojous aAey | (SyYOg/bI0 deqsioq mmm 1isIA aseald syQg 1noge
uonewuolul Jayuny 1oy) Ausiaaipolq 4o} Aylunuoddo Jo seale ajeos adeospue| ale asay |
"(vOg nesjeld As|pe 0} pjayybing ay} pue yOg ise3 As|eA jouusy) sealy Ayunpoddo
Ajisianipoig uiyum ale ysled ayj Jo sealy :seauy AjunuoddQ Aysianipolg -
"8)IS 9y} 0} SS800E palW||
AJan si a1ay) Jey) ajou asea|d ‘JaASMOH 'ISNJ] dJIIPIIAM UOXQ pue aJiysweybupong
‘adiysyiag ay) Aq pebeuew pue paumo aAlasal alnjeu e si puels| I pleuybing
1ey} apnjoul asea|d Ag|e/\ 1oUuaY| INOJe UOIID8S Y} U| :8AIasal ainjeu JpNO99 °
‘suonjeubisap
Aiojnjels-uou ale asay] ‘(joUBd-UONDS[0S-S81IS-[B00|/BI0 deqsyioq MMM 98s) allysyiag
Ul SOYS S4IIP|I [BO0T PBJ[EO MOU Bie SaUS abejlaH ajIIp|IM Sa)S SJIIPIIM [ed20T] o
Ayisianipolg 2

1MO8gd

‘ajelidosdde se ajesodiooul

0} [19Un0) ysiled ayj 0} uo
passed aq |[IM SJUBWWOD 8say}
pue ‘|1ouno) yslied ayy Aq Jno
palIed aq ||Im Juswalels ubiseq
[eul} 8y} jo uonejuasaid ay|
“Xipuaddy

ue se pappe uasq sey

sbulp|ing pajsiT jo 8|Npayos v

“Joyjne ay} 0}

s aq |Im Adoo paxyiew e 1ng ‘speod apisbuoje syjed 1o) sAkemioo sweu Jadoid ayj Jo pealsul
pasn aJe spiom juasayip | 1d 018 spiom Buissiw ‘uoneniound - palinbai s| 1xa} Jo Buiips swog -
‘g|doad

J8p|0 Joy Alueinoned ‘Buipeas Ases o) JUsWNOOp |eul) B 10} ||BWS 00} S| 9ZIS JUOH 1Xd8) 8y -
paJapisuod aq

ybiw ‘sjuswalels ubisaq Jayjo awos ul se ‘sainyoid punole Buiddeim jewso) uwnjod a|buls v -
"9AN08Y8 8q 0} ‘azis ay) aoim) sdeylad ‘1abbiq aq pjnoo sainjoid sawosg -

‘2q Bunybi| esnoy |eulaxa pinoys se uonnjjod
1yb1| asiwiuiw 0} se os adA} Adoue) ||n4 Jo pue *** :1s8b6ns - 18|INq 1841} - BUBDS 188.S G d -

jsuoseal SxH Joj pauued aq pinoys pue sdely Jabuyy [eyja| aie syun
JOOp uIspow Auey 'saxoq Jaya| |eulaxs Jo uolisinoid sbeinoous Jybiw noA - siooq z'y - ZLd -

¢£,S9SNOH
JouB\ pue sgnd ‘yoinyd 8y} Jnoge Jeym puy “wieq s ybiuy] ‘wied s,Uuoury] ‘Wied sJsuwy
‘wied yojeH ‘Aiojoey p|O 8YL ‘Wied ||IysSoH ‘Wieq usals) YoIM[OOAA

9 XIdN3ddV

Page 8



‘ajelidosdde se dn moj|o} 0}
[1DUNOD ysied ay) ojuo passed
usaq aABY ‘S|IE}SP 10BJU0D

ypm Buoje ‘sjuswwod asay |

‘saolpuaddy ay)

ulypm pappe usaq sey sbuip|ing
pajsiT Jo 8|npayods e sbulpjing
pajsi| 0} pJebal yum ‘os|y
"Juswalels ubiseq
usied/abe||iA e jo Jwai ay)
UIY}IM JOU S| SBaly UOIIBAISUOD
Jo uoneubisap 8y} ‘uoljoss
SJUBWIWOD [eJauab ay) UIYlAA

-9jelidosdde se
apew usag aAeY SUONIPPE BWoSs
pue pajou ale SJUSWWO0D 8say |

8y} pue ‘1e1oeleyo adedspue| OLI0]SIY 8y} JO UOIJO8S SIYl Ul UOUSW OU SI8Jay] -'Z e
"Sa)Is uonoelxa |oAeIb aAIsuaIxa ay) uo uonebsaaul ybnoiyy pajeanal
‘playybing ul punoy usaq sey saby azuolg pue 21Y}lj0aN 8y} Joj AJIAljoe uewny Jo
10UISIP Y} Ul 92USPIAS }S8Q 8} JO 8WOS "UBWOY }snljou ‘sawi) oL0}sIyald Jallles wo.y
ysued ay} ul JUsWISISS uewWNY Joj aduapine poob Alaa Ajlenyoe sialey] - ‘eied pig -G | e
‘Bunepdn Jenbal pue yJom alow o] e aiinbal [jIm
1 Uay) uonuaul ayj si Ajjeal siy} § ¢ uoiewIojul J0 824n0s d|buls e apirnoid 0} Juswalels
ubisaq ay} Joj a|qissod 1 sI ‘oisijeal Ajjenjoe si Juswalels SIY) Jl POJOPUOM |- f-€' ] e
*Aunwwod
8y} JO UOIIN|OAS DLI0ISIY BY) INOQe JUSWS)R)S JBa|D 8Y} SWO[OM YoNw AJIBA |- || e
sjuswiwo olyoadg
"‘@ousulwold aiow uaAlb jusem ‘@bpug playybing Ajeroadss ‘eale ay
0O Jajoeleyd 8y} 0] [BURD UOAY PUB JBUUSY 8y} JO UORNQLIU0D 3y} Jey) pasiidins sem | e
‘payosyold 8as 0} Juem pjnom Ajunwiwod [BOO| 8y} Jey) ‘018 ‘sainjes)
‘sjuawinuow ‘sBuipjing ‘sjasse abejiay uenodwi Ajjeoo| Aue 0} seoualajel ou ale aidy| e
‘ysued ayj Jo sBuiping pa)si] 8y} 0} S9oUBI88l OU BJe Blay] e
‘uonjeubisap ealy UOIBAISSUOY) JBPISUOD 0} |enusiod ay) Inoge
UOISSNISIP OU SI aJay} INg ‘ysiied ay} Ul Sealy UOIBAISSUOD) OU dJe 8Jay} eyl ajou | e
- SJUBLLIWIOD |BJBUDY)

‘pJemio} sanssi asay) Jo Aue aye) 0} Juem Aayy 4 Ajlunwiwiod
ay} djay 01 Addey ueyj aiow aq pjNOM | pUB UOIINJLIIUOD BAISOd B SB papuslul ale SjUsWwod
Buimojjo} 8y Juswalels ubisaq yelp Ssiy} uo Juswwod o} Ayunuoddo ayy Joj syueyy Auely

1900
|eoaibojoseyoly

oM

BIODISAT MM :813US0) SPJ02aY [BlUBWIUOIIAUT AB|lBA Sawey| e
B10°deqsyJoq MMM :WNJIOH UOIIBAISSUO) alnjeN allysyleg o
NN'BIOIMOGQ MMM :1SNJ] SJIPIIA SJIYSPIOIXO pue aliysweybuong ‘aaysyleg o
:ue|d ay} Ul papn[oul ale syull Buimoj||o) 8y} 1By} puswiwooal |
qull [nyasn "9

'sBuip|ing mau ojul pajelodiodul 89 Ued Sax0q jeq pue piig
‘sjuawdojansp mau jo Buideospue| ay} ul sa1oads aAijeu jo bunueld ay] o
:9|dwexs Jo4

‘popuUSWIWOoal g PINOYS SlusWaduByud AJISIoAIpoIq 10} seiunpoddo Juswdojaasp mau yoes Uuj

saujjaping juawdojanaq @ Buluueld ‘s

9 XIdN3ddV

Page 9



*ABuipioooe apew sjuswpuswe
pue pajou SjUsWWOo)

"90IAPE JUSWIUISAOS) BUIMO||0} SOIS SHIP|IN [BD0T SE
UMOU MoU aJe salig abeliaH alIplIA “Alisiaalpolg 'z ydelbeled o) sejejal Juswiiod Ajuo A

181601003 DGM

‘pabuelie aq Ajisea pjnod jey} 18s ejep ey} JO Yoieas e op 0} 8| pjnom ysued ayj i
pue |nydjay aq pjnom jey} uoiewloul Jo 10| B sey (Y3JH) piooay JuswuoliAug OLIO)SIH aJlysylag
1S9\ @yl “Inidiay ag pinom ey Ji siyy Buluieiqo ul isisse o} Addey uey) aiow aq pjnom | pue
a|gejieae Ajolignd sI sanss| 8say) 9A|0SaJ 0} UOIIBLLIOLUI 3U} JO 0| B Jey} Jeajo Jl 8ew pjnoys |
"0}8 ‘}salajul [eoibojoseyae jJo
saJnjes) pue sjuswnuow ‘sbuipjing ouolsiy jueuodwi jo830.4d 0} Jybnos jey) Buiyjewos
‘abejliay sayslied ay} Uo Uoioss SIy} ul Buiyiowos usas aAey O} paYl| 9ABY PINOM |-G e
"'SMOJ [0} Jey} yoeolidde Aaijod ayj 1o} 8ouapiAs aiow Buipiaoid pue Jayio yoes
wiouy Jayip Aayy sAem jeym ui Buimoys ‘ebisws 03 Jajoeleyd Jiay) Jo ainjoid pajielap aiow
B MOJ[Ee 0} ‘3[}i| & papuedxs 8q p|nod 8say} JI [NJasn g PINOM J MUY} |- €€ R ZE LS
‘BaJe ay} Jo Jajoeleyd ay} Buipuejsiapun
ul Juepoduwi AJaA Ajlenjoe ale asay| "pauonusaw J,uale Asjje/ 1ouuay] Jualind ay}
paw.o} jey} sassaooid ay) pue ‘sjaaelb oAl pue neajeld ay) ey} pasudins sem -2z e
‘adeospue| Juaund ay) padeys aAey ey} sassadoid [BOLIO)SIY

9 XIdN3ddV

Page 10



Burghfield Parish Design Statement

Auqgust 2011

Page 11




Left blank intentionally

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1

Page 12



Foreword

The Burghfield Parish Design Statement was published in 2011 following adoption by West Berkshire Council. It represents the
culmination of almost two years of hard work by members of the Parish and of the Parish Council.

The result is our attempt to define what makes living in Burghfield special. It will now be used by those wanting to develop in our
Parish and the Parish Planning Committee will also be able to refer to it as a guide on how we want our Parish to look in the future.
We welcome changes to keep our Parish fresh, but we need to ensure that change does not spoil the character of the Parish.

Thank you to all those who helped in the production of this statement and, on behalf of the Council, | would like to particularly thank
those Parishioners who took the time and effort to make their views known.

John Valentine
Chairman Burghfield Parish Council

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1

Page 13



1

1.1
1.2
1.3
1.4
1.5

2

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5

3

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6

4
4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.7
4.8

5
6
7
8
9

10

Table of Contents

9 0 o0 10 ot 0 ) 5
What is a Village /Parish Design Statement? ... 5
Why produce a Parish Design Statement for Burghfield? ... 5
Key aims of this Parish Design Statement ... 5
How the Parish Design Statement was produced - Consultation .........ccocuvmnnmsmsmsssarssesesnns 5
About Burghfield - Setting the CONeXt ... 6
Landscape Character ... sssssssssssssasssssssssassssassnsasses 8
LT 0 o2 01 1] 1 8
T4 (1 . 8
R L L0l S 11 ) o T N 8
33 0T8T L L 9
Footpaths & BridleWays.....ccuimmmsmmsmsmssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssassssssassesssnss 9
Y100 (23007 0 USO8 4 = ) = U o) ol 10
Burghfield COMMON... s e 10
Burghfield VIllage.........coomnnnsssssssssssssssssssss s sssssssssssssssssases 10
Burghfield Bridge ... sssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss s 10
L0301 (T 0T L L 10
VIEWS AN VISTAS .uovierirerrerissmsmsmssssssssssssnsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssssssss sanssnssssssnsssnsssnsssnssmssanssnnss 11
B 4TSI 0 ST A <) 1 L 11
Building Character ... 12
2 1 12
D ) o 12
WA O WS ceoierieriersssssnsssssssssssssnsssssssssansssnsssnsasssassssnsssasssssssssansssnsssessss sans snsssnssansanssnsssnssnsssnsssnssnsssnsssnssnnss 12
200 ) 13
Sustainable Building DesSign......cccunmmmmsssssssssssssssssssssssss 13
L 1 o 13
Boundary TreatMents ... s ssasassssssssssases 14
0 1 00 1<) 1 14
Planning & Development Guidelines.........cmmmmsmsmsmsssmsssmssmsssssssssssssssssssssass 15
APPENDIX 1: USEFUL LINKS....ciiiicccttsisssssrsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsssssssnssssssssssssssnsssssssnsnsssss 17
APPENDIX 2: BURGHFIELD COMMON ....cccoosetrirmmssssssssssssmssssssssssssssssssssnssssssssssssssnnsssssssssss 18
APPENDIX 3: BURGHFIELD VILLAGE .....ciiiiiesiimssssssmsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnssansssassnnes 19
APPENDIX 4: BURGHFIELD BRIDGE . .....ccoocesetrtrrmmmmsssssesssmmsssssssssssssmsssssssssssssssssssssnssssssnsnns 20
APPENDIX 5: LISTED BUILDINGS SCHEDULE FOR BURGHFIELD PARISH........... 21

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1

Page 14



1 Introduction

1.1 What is a Village/Parish Design
Statement?

A Village or Parish Design Statement describes the
distinctive character of a village or Parish, along
with its surrounding countryside. It delves back into
the past to give a historical perspective on how the
community has evolved over the centuries. It
describes the current environment, including the
prevailing architectural styles in evidence and the
traditional building materials typically used. It is also
an opportunity for local people to influence the
planning process within their own area.

1.2 Why produce a Parish Design
Statement for Burghfield?

This Parish Design Statement is intended to ensure
that future development and change within the
Parish are based on an understanding of the area's
history and present character. It draws attention to
what is special about features such as the buildings,
heathlands and ancient woodlands. The Burghfield
Parish Design Statement therefore aims to raise
awareness of what is special about this area, and at
the same time gives Parish residents a say in the
future of their village by producing guidance on
respecting these qualities. Any proposals for new
development within the area should take account of
this Design Statement and respect the character of
the Parish.

The Burghfield Parish Design Statement will be
used, once adopted by the West Berkshire Council,
as an aid in making planning decisions in order to
conserve the character of Burghfield. This
document sets out guidance at a local level, but
also complements and supports design guidance at
the District level, as set out in the Quality Design -
West Berkshire Supplementary Planning Document
(2006).

1.3 Key aims of this Parish Design
Statement

1. To ensure new development contributes
positively to the character of the Parish through
design principles.

2. To give the local community an opportunity to
describe where they live and what is special
about the area.

3. To deliver a well-presented and easily
understood account of the special features within
Burghfield.

4. To provide local residents, businesses and
organisations and potential developers with a
source of information about what factors need to
be taken into account when considering
developments, large or small, within the Parish.

5. The planning guidelines will assist Burghfield
Parish Council in commenting on planning
applications, and West Berkshire Council when
making decisions. In addition, when appeals are
made, the guidelines will be able to be used to
inform the decisions of Planning Inspectors and
the Secretary of State.

1.4 How the Parish Design Statement
was produced - Consultation

The information in this document was put together
by the residents of Burghfield in partnership with the
Parish Council. It is the result of public consultation
within the whole Parish at all stages including:

+  Two well attended day long workshops which
were held in the Village Hall on Saturday 27
September and Saturday 8 November 2008;

Facilitated by Planning Aid South, the sessions
consisted of photographic excursions round the
parish and subsequent detailed examination of the
locations visited.

Using their knowledge and experience, parishioners
were asked to think about buildings and other
features which are prominent and which help to tell
you which village you are in, and which part of the
village. For example, trees, slopes, walls, spaces, a
decorative sign or even a unique garden / feature.

The production of this Design Statement has also
depended on:

+  Consultation with West Berkshire Council
(WBC) planning officers;

*  Input from Parish Council members.

Formal consultation on the draft Parish Design
Statement was undertaken by West Berkshire
Council for four weeks from Friday 19 November to
Friday 17 December 2010. The Council consulted
directly with nearly 40 statutory agencies, national
interest groups, adjacent parish councils, local
interest groups and local developers (or their
agents). In addition, the draft document was made
available on the Council’'s website.

The Design Statement has been produced in
consultation with the local community and
stakeholders and conforms with relevant
development plan policies. In line with guidance in

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1

Page 15



Planning Policy Statement 12 (June 2008), the
Council will pay close attention to the contents of
the Design Statement as part of its community
involvement in the production of the Local
Development Framework.

1.5 About Burghfield - Setting the
Context

The Parish of Burghfield lies in the eastern part of
West Berkshire District, approximately 20km east of
Newbury and approximately 7km to the southwest
of Reading.

The Parish consists of the following settlement
areas.

+ Burghfield Common;

+ Burghfield Village; and

+ Burghfield Bridge.

Despite Burghfield's proximity to Reading, its
residents retain a sense of remoteness with a
degree of tranquillity and dark night skies.

The Parish has been inhabited since before Roman
times, with evidence of human activity in the
Neolithic and Bronze Ages. The Parish has a
traditionally rural farming history. The population in
1961 was 2,323, whilst by 2001 it had risen to
approximately 6,000. Burghfield developed slowly
during the late 19th century and without much pace
until the 1980s. The rate of development increased
rapidly however with the construction of the M4
motorway in the 1970s, and gravel extraction
became a major industry in the Parish.

Burghfield then changed from an essentially farming
settlement to a much busier dormitory community.
However, the north of the Parish retains its open
countryside in the Kennet Valley, with its river, canal
and lakes offering facilities for leisure activities such
as sailing and water skiing.

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1

Burghfield Common, situated at the top of
Burghfield Hill, along Reading Road, has witnessed
recent, quality housing development and includes
shops and three recreation grounds, as well as two
Public Houses, the Rising Sun and the Bantam.

There are junior, primary and secondary schools
within this area, and the Village Hall which is
administered through the Parish Council.

Burghfield Village remains largely unchanged and
retains much of its original character, especially in
the thatched Old School House and Public Houses
of the Six Bells and the Hatchgate. There is a
recreation ground and large area of allotments. This
area includes the church of St. Marys and a Primary
School of the same name.

From Burghfield Bridge in the north, towards
Burghfield Village and up the hill towards Burghfield
Common to the south, lies the heart of the Parish.
It's an area of rolling, partly wooded countryside
which is a major attraction to the parishioners.

In open countryside south of the M4, between
Burghfield Bridge and Burghfield Common, lies a 91
hectare (225 acre) site operated by the Atomic
Weapons Establishment (AWE). AWE is
responsible for developing and maintaining Britain’s
independent nuclear deterrent. The company’s
headquarters are at AWE Aldermaston, which
covers approximately 304 hectares (750 acres).
Formerly a wartime airfield, the site is now a
sophisticated centre providing advanced research,
design and manufacturing facilities. AWE
Burghfield, a former munitions factory, is
responsible for the complex final assembly and
maintenance of the warheads while in service, as
well as their decommissioning. AWE is a major
employer in the Burghfield area, and the Burghfield
site is of considerable significance in terms of future
development in the area due to the provisions of
radiation (Emergency Preparedness and Public
Information) Regulations 2001 (REPPIR).

Page 16



| anss| —Juswale)s ubisaq ysled pieyybing

“LSLPZ000L HPUNOD K anyspeg saw, 0102 wbuddos unoid (o) eoo Msuones s Aisaleyy 184 10 Je0uos Byl jo uosssiuwsed syl yiw dew fanng ssueupic Wol paanpoidey

._\ 3 ¥ ._=...,. v t\..w N
pX_ A ' ¢ \¥  afroagivg
<" <} A hc\_x._ g

v:mdr_m_ J =311 Ll | = ¥ h
% ) dew pajie}op siow \/\2/
Heay \_w / eloj gl obedsss | A
I, ~ 4 ¢ \\
w.w\m:ncsm /i uowwion pjeyybing
= (11}
i/

S

o | ’

dew pajiejop aiow
e o} g| obed ass
‘abey|IA piayybing

WSy T squock st
B

iesnoyius

pug 43dd(
A33s1uneg o
A _ mv\mmﬁ\m&meaw.. S
’ 1) & :

= Bl

{Lwoijog piatioyst

kit R i £ 8 Sm— et B ST =

.\ __k dew pajlejep aiouw
i B 10} 0z obed s8s |

% |

3 ﬁﬁ\__

2 oFentas
T . s .\‘n.‘.lV Q.yﬂonm
m {{IN-2Y69yIn0S___ “ﬁm = — 7 \ N m_m__%.w.r i
£ gy e A B GE SN Y G A8 SCS \ IopLuatiel

ystieg pryyBing jo depy

Page 17



2 Landscape Character

2.1 Geography

The main settlements of Burghfield Parish
(Burghfield Common, Burghfield Village and
Burghfield Bridge) lie along the Reading Road.
From north to south, Burghfield Bridge is the closest
to Reading and lies where the Reading Road
crosses the River Kennet, with Pingewood to the
south-east, and Sheffield Bottom across the
motorway to the south west. Burghfield Bridge is
followed by Burghfield Village, to the south of the
M4 motorway. Burghfield Hill is in the southern
upland part of the Parish, on the north-facing slope
leading to a plateau where lies Burghfield Common,
named after the Parish common land on which it
was built. Burghfield Common has by far the largest
population of all the settlements within the Parish.
Its eastern corner is known as Great Auclum, and it
extends south-west into the adjacent parishes of
Sulhamstead and Wokefield (See Map of Burghfield
Parish — page 7).

The M4 motorway runs west to east across the
northern part of the Parish, and the Tadley to
Reading road (Reading Road) runs north-east to
south-west through the Parish. It currently carries a
significant number of vehicles per day and forms the
main communication route to and from the Parish.

The Kennet River valley, in the north of the Parish,
presents a mosaic of lakes, marshland and willow
scrub, with water meadows to the north of the river.
Further south, between the M4 motorway and
Burghfield Village the ground is relatively flat, with
pastureland and small stands of deciduous
woodland occupying heavy clay soil. South of
Burghfield Village the slopes are covered in
grassland interspersed with larger copses of
deciduous woodland, and is dissected by several
partially wooded valleys and small streams such as
Clayhill Brook. The plateau gravels support
grassland, deciduous woodland and Scots pine,
with small areas of heath land persisting on
Wokefield Common which borders Burghfield
Common to the south. The grasslands within the
Parish are grazed by a wide variety of cattle, sheep
and horses.

2.2 Geology

Burghfield lies in an area of clay and sand which
was laid down in shallow, marine, coastal and fluvial
(river) environments. The oldest sediments
comprise sands deposited in a shallow sea overlain
by the reddish-brown clays of the Reading
Formation. These latter sediments were deposited
on marshy mudflats crossed by river channels.
Named after the Reading area, the largely fossil-

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1

poor clay outcrops in a narrow strip between the
Chalk and the overlying London Clay. The dark
bluish to brownish London Clay outcrops in a broad
swathe between Windsor and Burghfield and along
the valley of the River Kennet towards Newbury.
This was deposited in a shallow sub-tropical sea
and contains the fossils of many marine animals
such as bivalves, gastropods and sharks. The
remains of many species of plants, such as the
seeds of palms, climbers, magnolias and
mangroves can also be found in the London Clay
and were probably washed out to sea by large

rivers. (http://www.english-
nature.org.uk/special/geological/sites/area_ID2.asp)

2.3 Water Features

Burghfield is well known for its gravel pits which are
often used for leisure purposes now that the
extraction is completed. There are extensive fishing
lakes and an inshore sailing club. Hosehill Lake,
situated to the North West of the Parish near
Sheffield Bottom, is a place for a relaxing stroll
around the edge of a wildlife lake through
meadows, past ponds and under trees. There is
also rustic seating and several bird viewing areas
around this one-mile path. The entrance to the
reserve is opposite the Fox and Hounds Pub at
Sheffield Bottom. (More on Hose Hill Lake in the
Biodiversity Section).

The Parish is largely bounded by rivers and
streams. The Clayhill Brook forms part of its
western border with Sulhamstead. The Burghfield
Brook forms its southern border with Wokefield and
Grazeley. The eastern boundary lies just west of the
railway line, near Smallmead, running south from
Reading. The northern boundary with Theale and
the Southcote area of Reading is formed by the
Holy Brook and the Draper's Osier Bed Stream. The
River Kennet and the Kennet and Avon Canal run
through the northern part of the parish and are,
today, surrounded by vast gravel pits where there is
much wildlife and where fishing, sailing and other
water sports are popular pastimes. Through the
heart of Burghfield Common winds The Teg stream,
with its source close to the Willink School much
interesting wildlife can be found along its length.

Much of the Kennet Valley is subject to frequent
flooding, and part of it is defined as functional flood
plain. There are areas in the flow of the river Kennet
where drainage is not as good as it might be. There
are also areas where the streams and rivers taking
water away are nearing capacity and therefore
heavy rains lead to localised flooding. Apart from
the wetland area associated with former gravel pits
in the Kennet Valley, the area is mostly farmland.
However, there remain patches of attractive
woodland such as Brick Kiln Copse, James’ Copse,
Pingewood, Amners’ Wood, Clayhill Copse and

Page 18



Scratchface Copse (See Map of Burghfield Parish -
page 7).

2.4 Biodiversity

Burghfield includes a number of areas of high
significance in nature conservation terms. Of
particular importance is the extensive wetland area
in the Kennet Valley which has been created, in
part, by careful management following the
extraction of gravel from what are currently lakes,
and is now a haven for a wide range of protected
bird species, such as the nightingale. Due to the
importance of protection, the local residents now
enjoy Red Kites over the Kennet Meadows together
with good numbers of kestrels, buzzards and
peregrine falcons, which can be seen on the
thermals enjoying this fantastic habitat of the
Kennet Meadows.

A Local Nature Reserve has been designated
around Hose Hill Lake near Theale, and is being
actively managed for conservation purposes by the
Theale Bird Group in conjunction with West
Berkshire Council. Two extensive Local Wildlife
Sites are recognised incorporating lakes further to
the east. Burghfield Mill Island, to the west of
Burghfield Bridge, is a nature reserve owned and
managed by the Berkshire, Buckinghamshire and
Oxfordshire Wildlife Trust (BBOWT), however,
access to the site is very limited.

Areas of the Parish lie within Biodiversity
Opportunity Areas (BOAs). These are landscape
scale areas of opportunity for biodiversity. The two
BOAs within the Parish are the Kennet Valley East
BOA and the Burghfield to Tadley plateau BOA.

The Parish also includes several areas of ancient
woodland, such as that in Omers Gully lying in the
southwest upper corner of Burghfield Common, on
the boarder with Sulhamstead, to the north west of
Hunters Hill in Burghfield Common. This area is
also recognised as a Local Wildlife Site, and is
being managed for recreation and conservation by
alocal group, Friends of Omers Gully Wood, in
partnership with West Berkshire Council and
Sovereign Housing Association. It links up with
other woodland by Omers Brook, such as Clayhill
Copse to the north east, to form an important
wildlife corridor.

A range of woodland and other habitats exist on
Wokefield Common, which is being managed by
West Berkshire Council under the Higher Level
Stewardship scheme. Of particular significance are
the heathland areas which support rare species
including slow worms, grass snakes and adders.

The northern swathe of the Parish covering Theale
and Pingewood lakes is important for its wildlife and
habitats. It hosts a wide variety of water fowl in the
winter and nightingales join the butterflies and
dragonflies in the spring. The Countryside Service is
dedicated to improving, maintaining and conserving
this reserve for all to enjoy, alongside the Theale
Area Bird Conservation Group.

2.5 Footpaths & Bridleways

The Parish is well served by footpaths and
bridleways across the fields and open spaces, as
well as through the woods.

These paths and bridleways are enjoyed by
walkers, nature lovers and dog-walkers alike and
are an important feature of life in the Parish.
There are a number of paths and “cut-throughs”
allowing people to move freely around the Parish,
away from motorised traffic.

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1 9

Page 19



3 Settlement Character

3.1 Burghfield Common

Burghfield Common is the largest of the residential
settliements which comprise the Parish of
Burghfield. Development within this village has
continued throughout the 20th century, with the last
four to five decades seeing a substantial increase in
housing, mostly in the form of planned residential
estates. This has had varying degrees of success in
terms of design and style of housing.

An example of one of the pre-war era houses in
Burghfield Common.

Prior to 1900 smaller domestic residences were
built predominately from Mortimer brick, whilst
larger late Victorian (mostly detached) and
Edwardian dwellings were built in the style of the
day, incorporating the Art Nouveau and Arts &
Crafts fashions. Relatively few landmark buildings
from this period survive in prominent locations.
Notable among these are Edwardian or late
Victorian houses on Bunces Lane which are visible
across the Burghfield Common allotments, and a
small number of properties of similar vintage near
the junction of Hollybush Lane and Reading Road,
including the Rising Sun.

Few houses were constructed in the inter-war
period; however post-war saw a great expansion
mostly through planned housing estates reflecting
the architectural styles of each decade. The most
recent developments have attempted to draw upon
more traditional styles and building materials.

3.2 Burghfield Village

Burghfield Village retains much of its historic layout
and form centred around the village green. The
settliement pattern is well defined along the roads
and lanes into and out of the village, mainly
Reading Road and Theale Road. Traditional
buildings are intermixed with newer more modern
housing. The village contains a mix of old, for
example St Mary’s Church, a Grade |l listed
building, to the northern end of the village and
Manor House dispersed throughout, with new
clusters of residential dwellings, blending well and

broadly drawing upon the form of existing dwellings
within the village.

3.3 Burghfield Bridge

Burghfield Bridge is the smaller of the main
settlements within the Parish and is clustered along
the Reading Road, north of Burghfield Village but to
the south of Reading. Burghfield Bridge is
characterised by large modern executive housing
along with smaller more traditional buildings along
the road edge.

3.4 Open Spaces

The settlements within the Parish contain a mixture
of both, informal and formal open spaces in
amongst housing and views over local vistas.
Green areas have great importance both to the
adjacent houses, and the look and feel of the Parish
as awhole. Important examples include the
Common Recreation Ground, The Old Recreation
Ground, The Wells, The Hatch and the Auclum and
Omers Gully.

There are a number of important and much valued
open spaces within the main settlements.

These include:
+  The Firs, an area of woodland by the Reading
Road in the heart of Burghfield Common.

+  The large recreation ground on Recreation
Road and the smaller ground on the Hatch in
Burghfield Village, both much loved amongst
others by children, footballers and dog-
walkers.

* Alarge children’s play area in the Dauntless
estate off Clayhill Road, the skate boarding
facility opposite Rising Sun Pub, and a smaller
play area on Bunces Lane.

+  The very popular allotments gardens in both
Burghfield Common and Burghfield Village.

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1 10

Page 20



The photograph below shows Burghfield Village
Green, a much valued open space to all the local
residents.

Burghfield Village Green

Spaces between buildings form a relationship
between the two, and are integral to the
sustainability of village life and are important design
considerations, as all residents benefit from a
feeling of spaciousness and well being. Mature and
growing trees and other vegetation in private
gardens, open spaces and within the wider
landscape add significantly to the character and
ambience of the village.

Despite the number of new houses built in recent
years, developers have paid close attention to this
fact and have continued to respect this by allocating
space between properties.

3.5 Views and Vistas

Driving south from Reading into Burghfield
Common, the view is of trees and forestry. Driving
up Hermits Hill along Reading Road, the initial vista
is of a small village with a number of houses on
either side of the road. It is only when you take a
right turn at the round-about next to one of the 3
main points in the village, the Pharmacy and Health
Centre, and go down Hawksworth Road that a great
more residential housing is revealed. This is due to
the vast majority of the dwellings being built
between Hermits and Burghfield Hills, offering up,
what seems to be, a secluded village. This is the
view that is experienced on every road into and
from Burghfield Common.

The varied terrain provides a range of attractive
views and vistas, many of which can be viewed
from the Reading Road, as well as from the public
rights of way network. Clayhill Road and Mans Hill
are also excellent vantage points for observing the
partially wooded slopes rising up to Burghfield
Common. The wetland areas in the Kennet Valley
are best observed from the Kennet and Avon Canal
towpath and other public paths.

3.6 The Street Scene

The street scene within the settlements of
Burghfield Parish has a significant influence on the
character of the area.

Trees and Hedgerows:

An abundance of trees form an essential part of the
character of Burghfield Common and Burghfield
Village. Important in this respect are the copses in
the surrounding countryside, and also trees in
gardens, along roadsides and in open spaces such
as The Firs. Particularly important in Burghfield
Common is the multitude of mature Scots Pines
with their distinctive umbrella-like crowns.

Hedgerows are an integral part of the English
landscape and many have been in place for
hundreds of years. They represent valuable
landscape and nature conservation features within
the Parish.

Highways:

The main road running through Burghfield is
Reading Road which is a very busy thoroughfare,
carrying traffic between Reading, Tadley and
Aldermaston. Historically there has been a 30 mph
speed limit on the majority of its route through the
settlement with a short 40 mph section on
Burghfield Hill and a derestricted section between
Burghfield Village and Burghfield Bridge. This road
is heavily used during peak times by many types of
vehicle, as well as cyclists and horse riders.

There are sections of the Reading Road with narrow
pedestrian walkways on only one side of the road
and no dedicated cycle path. There are speed
restriction cameras situated close to the Pinewood
service station in Burghfield Common, and
automated warning devices by the Post Office and
on the entrance to the Burghfield Village from
Reading. A number of facilities within the Parish
have dedicated parking available

Despite this main road through the Parish the
character of the roadways is predominantly rural;
country lanes with no footpaths. This rural character
is valued by local residents and well respected.

Buildings:

Burghfield Parish hosts 16 Listed Buildings
throughout - a full list of these can be found in
Appendix 5.

Although Burghfield has seen many changes in
recent years and several new developments, it
continues to have a number of clearly defined
characteristics in relation to its appearance. The
distinct boundaries remain in place and it now has a
mixture of new and old properties. These different
types of properties and their varying sizes add to
the character of Burghfield. When driving or
walking through the village and towards the

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1 11

Page 21



Common there is a generous amount of space
available for each property.

Local residents take pride in their properties and
this is demonstrated by the vast majority having well
maintained gardens and grass verges. In amongst
the new developments, there are well established
trees and footpaths, which add to the character.
Many of the properties in Burghfield are set back
from the road, which means that many roads have
wide footpaths.

4 Building Character

Examining the style and design of the existing
buildings assists in drawing out the character of
Burghfield Parish.

41 Walls

Walls add character to the village and surrounding
areas and this is particularly so as they age and sit
naturally within the landscape. More than any other
single component the choice of wall material
establishes the character and style within the
Parish. The most prominent wall material
throughout the Parish is brick.

In residential areas walls provide definition in
relation to boundary division, and depending on the
building material walls can be an attractive feature
providing more permanence than fences and
hedges, which both require regular maintenance
and can look untidy if not maintained.

4.2 Doors

Due to the nature and the time span involved in the
building of Burghfield Village and Burghfield
Common there is a wide variance in the materials
and design of doors within the village.

There are still many examples of original designs
consisting of wood and glass construction mainly
from the older areas of Burghfield Common such as
Firs End, School Lane and Bunces Lane. An
example of this is shown below:

Older style wooden door commonly seen in
Burghfield Common

The areas of the village that were built more
recently do tend to rely on more modern designs
and are predominantly constructed of uPVC.

An example of this is shown below:

Modern uPVC doors used in the construction of the
newer residential dwellings.

It should be noted that, as wooden doors tend to
need considerably more maintenance than uPVC,
many original wooden doors have been replaced
with their more modern counterparts. However, the
majority of the replacements have not detracted
from the overall design of the original building

4.3 Windows

As with the construction of doors, the residential
dwellings in the older parts of the village were
constructed with single glazed, wooden framed
windows. Some are of sash construction but the
majority were of single or double casement opening.

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1 12

Page 22



The shape of the windows varies according to the
age and style of the building. There are a number of
dwellings with bay windows which are made up of a
combination of fixed and opening sashes or
casements and these tend to be in the older areas
of the village, along with those dwellings with Bow
windows, which are usually made up of flat
casements.

The areas of the village that are of a more recent
design have moved away from the more traditional
materials and tend to rely more on uPVC. They still
have a design of a top opening and side opening
casement but require considerably less
maintenance than wood or aluminium.

Many of the older houses in the village have had
the original windows replaced with uPVC but not to
the detriment of the general design of the village.
An example of an uPVC bay window is shown
below:

uPVC bay window

As there is such a wide variance in the design and
the construction of windows within the village it is
hard to say what the preferred material should be.
Suffice to say it should be in keeping with its
surroundings.

4.4 Roofs

Roofs on older buildings are simple, usually pitched
and shallower the newer the building (as a general
rule, the older the building the steeper the pitch).
This reflects the characteristics of the roofing
materials traditionally used. Where the covering
material has been thatch, the roofs are typically
pitched at least 50 degrees. Few thatched
examples remain, although there were many more
within living memory. The other materials used are
slate (both real and synthetic), pan tiles, concrete
interlocking tiles and, rarely, flat roofs. Some older
buildings are hipped, but half-hipped and mansard
roofs are not traditional styles in the area.

4.5 Sustainable Building Design

Following the introduction by the Government in
April 2007 of the Code for Sustainable Homes, it is
the view of the Parish Council that the need for
energy efficiency in new homes is of vital
importance. Equally, affordability in homes should
not be reserved merely to the initial cost of
purchase but also to future on-going living and
maintenance costs. It is the aspiration of the Parish
Council to aim for level 4 of the Code.

4.6 Garages

Garages are very much a feature of the housing
found within Burghfield Parish; carports are rare and
associated with dwellings mostly built in the 1960’s
and 1970’s.

There is a wide variety of type, size and style to
garages. This variation is dependent on the size of
the house and the era in which it was built.

Garages are seen to be built integral to dwellings
(see second picture below), as side attachments
(see first picture below) or as independent
structures. Single garages predominate in these
forms; however there are many double garages,
with both single and twin entrances. Stand alone
rows of garages are not common within the Parish.

Garage integral to the deing

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1 13

Page 23



Garage doors similarly vary from ‘up and over’
metal doors, to wooden (period and replacement)
and uPVC electronic opening doors as seen in the
photographs above.

Entrance sizes also vary for single garages. More
suitable for the modern car are those single garages
with a slightly wider entrance and larger internal
width. The garage featured in the top photograph is
side attached, original in structure to this 1960’s
period house, and features the more favoured 7°6”
door (replaced in the 1990s) with an internal width
of 11",

4.7 Boundary Treatments

Boundaries to the front of properties and between
properties vary considerably across the Parish. The
old properties particularly in Burghfield Village and
Burghfield Bridge, but also those facing the main
roads in Burghfield Common usually have high
(1.8m or higher) enclosing fencing or hedges to
provide privacy and security.

The newer properties and more modern
developments (from the 1980’s and onwards) of
Burghfield Common generally are more open with
either low level features or with no physical
identification of the boundary between properties.

On roads, and developments with no boundary
identification or only low level features give a very
pleasing open feel to the area, a greater impression
of space and a strong sense of ‘community’.

Rear garden boundaries between properties are
generally defined with 1.8m high fencing or even
higher hedges, this gives the occupants privacy and
security.

Fencing generally consists of larch lap panels,
usually in 1.8m wide panels between either wooden
or concrete posts or close boarded fencing also on
timber or concrete panels. The larch lap panels
have more or less the same appearance from both
sides where as the close boarded fencing has a
definite front and back. The front offers a very
pleasant continuous appearance, where as the
back clearly shows all the supporting posts and
rails.

The hedging is generally evergreen to give an all
year round protection and privacy. Popular species
are varieties such as Privet, Beech, Hawthorne and
Leylandii. Hedges need regular attention to
maintain a neat and tidy appearance. The Leylandii
can grow very quickly and need regular attention to
prevent them outgrowing the space.

The below picture shows a hedgerow used as
boundary treatment to the front of a property in
Burghfield Village. The picture also illustrates the

property as set back from the road allowing for
garden space.

4.8 Gardens

The existing layout and use of private gardens
across each of the Burghfield Parish settlement
areas clearly demonstrate their value as a
significant contributing element of the established
green infrastructure networks. Indeed, throughout
Burghfield there are established residential areas
defined by the mature landscapes within both front
and rear gardens. Such green networks, comprising
garden space and open public spaces, are widely
recognised as an important factor in the Parish’s
historically rural character, and are important for
nature conservation. This characteristic is an
essential feature of the charm and appeal that
encourages people to live in Burghfield.

Front gardens are used across the Parish to form a
distinguishable green boundary from the roads. This
is achieved through the use of lawns and a variety
of shrubs. Such separation is used by residents to
create and maintain the rural impression, thus
inherently contributing to the desirable green
networks.

Other garden space is apportioned relative to the
capacity and size of the dwelling.

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1 14

Page 24



5 Planning & Development Guidelines

These guidelines are designed to provide
developers with an understanding, as to the wishes
of Burghfield Parish residents whilst reflecting the
Parish Plan as set out by Burghfield Parish Council.
They are to be used in conjunction with the West
Berkshire Council Supplementary Planning
Document on Quality Design.

Overall Objective

New development should conserve and enhance
the character of the Parish, incorporating
sympathetic design and reflecting the surrounding
environment.

Environment

*  Any proposed development should take due
account of the varying groundwater regimes
and the impact it may have on drainage.

+  Open spaces within the Parish are important
and much valued by the local community. Any
new development should respect, conserve
and where possible enhance these spaces.

+  The character of the narrow winding lanes
throughout the Parish should be carefully
considered within proposals for new
development.

+  The setting of Burghfield in the wider
landscape should be conserved and enhanced
by any future development, respecting
important views into and out of the individual
settlements, such as those along Mans Hill in
Burghfield Common.

+  The Kennet Valley wetlands, heathland,
ancient woodland and other significant wildlife
habitats should be preserved and enhanced for
their biodiversity.

+  New development should pay special attention
to maintaining the wildlife corridors across the
Parish, and where possible such corridors
should be enhanced.

= New development should maximise
opportunities for biodiversity enhancements,
such as the planting of native species in
landscaping, and incorporating new bird and
bat boxes into new buildings.

Street scene

Buil

Street lighting, where it is deemed necessary,
should be sensitively placed so as to minimise
light pollution.

Any new development should continue to
respect the relationship between open spaces
and the built form within the Parish.

Existing trees, shrubs and hedgerows should
be conserved within and around any future
development sites. Where necessary,
landscaping of proposed sites should be
enhanced with further planting to lessen any
potential visual impact of the development.

Any new development should seek to maintain
and enhance the existing network of footpaths
and walkways throughout the Parish, providing
additional paths/pedestrian links where
appropriate.

The visual impact of car parking within any
new development should be minimised, and
avoid car parking on areas of hard standing to
frontages, respecting highway safety.

Traffic-calming measures in sympathy with the
Parish’s rural nature would be welcomed. The
installation of well-designed gateways,
textured/coloured surfaces and lower speed
limits with appropriate road signage would be
considered. Any such measures implemented
should complement the surroundings and
designed to promote increased safety.

ding design

In any new development the use of wall
material, type and colour should be consistent
with commonly used existing materials, such
as Mortimer Brick The use of such materials
along with the use of brick patterns and bonds,
raised designs or mouldings should
complement the immediate surroundings.

The roof pitch and design of properties should
relate well to the proportions, roof massing and
form of the existing buildings, complementing
the overall design and choice of materials
used.

The design of windows and doors should be in
character with the building and in harmony with
the architectural style of the surrounding
development.

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1 15

Page 25



New development should respect the height of
the existing and adjacent buildings and should
essentially maintain a continuous building line,
traditionally not exceeding 2 storeys.

The design of new development should take
into account the inclusion and provision of a
safe and secure location for refuse and
recycling bins.

The development of water and energy
efficiency technologies in future builds
incorporating provision for the generation of
renewable energy is encouraged.

Clearly defined property boundaries are
encouraged in any future developments and
should be rural in character and content. A
preference for low-level walls using traditional
materials such as brick is encouraged.
Boundary treatments should integrate into their
surroundings, reducing visual impacts and
complementing the type and colour of
materials used in existing boundaries.

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1

Page 26

Existing mature landscape features, such as
trees, hedgerows, water courses etc, should
be incorporated into the design of any new
development.

The provision of front garden space should be
provided within new developments where this
is in keeping with surrounding properties and
the prevailing character of the area. Such
spaces should have regard for existing wildlife
habitats.

Opportunities for infilling may exist throughout
the Parish, but such development proposals
should take a holistic account of the character
of the surrounding area, and should respect
the scale and design of the existing buildings.

Householders and developers should carefully
consider the visual impact of the location and
design of garages within the context of the
wider street scene.

16



6 APPENDIX 1: USEFUL LINKS

Geology: http://www.english-nature.org.uk/special/geological/sites/area_ID2.asp
UK Environnent Agency : http://www.environment-agency.gov.uk/
Friends of Omers Gully: http://www.friendsofomersgullywood.co.uk

Burghfield Parish Council web site:  http://www.burghfieldparishcouncil.gov.uk

Burghfield Residents Association: http://www.burghfieldresident.org.uk

St Mary’s Church, Burghfield: http://www.stmarysburghfield.org

Berkshire Nature Conservation Forum: www.berksbap.org
Berkshire, Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire Wildlife Trust: www.bbowt.org.uk
Thames Valley Environmental Records Centre: www.tverc.org

Burghfield Parish Design Statement — Issue 1

Page 27

17



8T | anss| —juswalels ubisaq ysled pieuybing

puUN OIS |BUOIIBBIOOY UOWWOD 8Y |
punoJs |euonessdey S|II8 M YL

,mme,.a“.m\w_w”

Eap

L A
B men_ou@:qu_.{

A e

5,

uowwo) p|ayybing
ul 9sSnoH UelI0}oIA B Jo 9jdwexa Jayjouy

uowwon Emcﬂmk_zm_ Ul 8SNOH UBLIO}OIA € jo a|dwexs uy

11720001 [10UNog JoLIsIq aa1ysyiag 1sep “0102 JublAdoD umoin @ soio Ateuonels sAiselely JoH o Jajj0au0D 8y} jo uoissiwiad sy} yim dew Asaing souBuUpIQ WoJ) psonpoiday

NOWIWOI a1314H9dNg -¢ XIAN3ddY L

Page 28



| anss| —juswalels ubisaq ysled pieuybing

and @1e9 yoieH 8y} Ju ebeilA playybing ui esnoy yojeH ay} apis buoje peol Buipeay ay) Buoje main

punols) uopealosy YojeH syl

» obeApisiibingl

ul gnd sjjeg XIS ayL

e

5

" g B - E o5 . g 2 A
s R 5 \ b kS b kn
5 e ; d s 2L GIn
hY T L ; Lo pleLubing
A ' : s va..

Qnd 91 YoleH eyl

Mmm___> piauybing wouj yuou Bujoo| smaip

LGL¥20001 110UN0Y JoLIsIa aysyiag 1sep “0102 JubuAdog umoin @ sowo Ateuones s.Aisele|y JoH o Jaj|0u0D 8y} Jo uoissiwiad sy} yym dew Asaing 8ouBUPIO WOl psonpoiday

A9VTIIA A1314HOUNG € XIANIddY 8

Page 29



0¢

| anss| —Juswalels ubisaq ysled pieuybing

abpug ployybing gnd uep butuun) syl

CLESLO00E FegunuU 3EUEM FO0E JYBl SseqeiEp 10/pUE

“AsAngEouBLPIQ WOy pasusor plep Buiddau say
eI R Bl R AT
ik i
s
- TIL 147
W
; TS
i L e
MLAL, Sl o
N 1=y
Cai e e
_H._.....n.u_hnn_m : n__h..%. AL
L. - = cr o e 2
PP >[7 T, =
L.__" R LIRS |__.||._ L
a7 AlyyEng | b
£/ 5 ok R uieag | ¥
] J Y e S —— -
Lo - : iR 49
.._. .u.n.,ulﬂ. ﬁh.f | BnELY m..._. b - .t;nh]...E
gt e S T = Rl E
4 — L TTIE R i f 5
- P e . S —taa (¥
= s by 3 e
== : S gy, e
N 5 _..m,..“_. %».... :.r-......... -
S T i - =1 1n"_. ; u,._nwu_. ..nt.|__
x\p .f\.\e“.f Ao _ Wm.“..n.,”.f.ﬂ..lr.... 2 ......h.... _“_
e iy & s
$,..,..\|\.\ ._.:..._. _.“_“. = - .,.q“..,m.n. !
Pho Do aisy, Fu.u_l..rv.w._ e W T
T SROVEE e _ﬁ«}mf«wv%v.\ 5 Do e _

151720001 [1PUn02) 10U)SIq da1YsHIag 1S9\ "01.0z 1ubuAdon umoi) @ 910 Ateuonels s Aisalep JaH 1o Jajjo5u0) ays jo uoissiwlad sy} yim dew AoAIng aoueuplQ Wols paonpoiday

390119 dT1314HOYNG ¥ XIANIddY 6

Page 30



T¢

| anss| — Juswajelg ubisaq ystied peuybing

playybing I 804959 NS 1€ %907 uojsieg JO I8uJoY Jse3q Yinos je Xoq|lid L¥20210999NS 0900¥%
pleyybing Il 804959 NS Je %007 uoisieg JO JsuUJoD JSSAN YHON Je Xoq|lid 9G6/0.11899NS 6500
playybing «ll 802959NS 1e %007 uoisien 9%1,0.28599NS 8G00¥
pleyybing Il 602289 NS 1e abpug payybing 66.0.2¥7189NS 1S00¥%
playybing Il 9048¥9 NS 1€ X207 plsiyays 0090.008¥9NS 9500¥
playybing «l peoy pesjswey|ng A10y09y plO BYL €658916599NS 6666¢
plauyybing Il wJe uaaiBUOIM[OOA 28.69¢YSY9NS 8666€
playybing Il [I'H s.ueiy SpuelIsAIND €802911599NS 1666¢
pleyybing Il [I'H ®SoH wed [jiyssoH 92569t1299NsS 9666¢
playybing Il sueT yojeH asnoywued yojeH 1/GG89€9899NS G666€
playybing Il aueT Ajjo4 Joue\ pPIO 8yl €006952059NS ¥666¢
pleyybing Il sueT yosinyo ulbaip ey Are 1S Jo yainyo 96£89¥60.9NS £666¢
playybing Il peoy playybing asnoyuwed s suuy 01¥69906.9NS C666¢
pleyybing Il aueT] sAueg asnoyulie sUoUIy $68699¥269NS L666€
pleuybing I aueT shuieg asnoywued siybiuy | €786907289NS | 0666€
plauybing I SSNOY|IIN PIBUBYS L9Y0LYYOrINS 6866€

ysiied dpeio SweN jea4s awep Buipjing UON PN sa1

1102 ‘duluQ Bulpling pajsi :92inog
HSIIVd AT1314HO™NE J04 ITNAIHIS SONIATING AILSIT :S XIANIddY O |

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



	Agenda
	1. Burghfield Village Design Statement
	Appendix B - Consultation Responses
	Appendix C - Burghfield Parish Design Statement


